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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2020

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020. The annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The principal activity of the company is the operation of three state-funded academies within a Multi Academy
Trust (MAT). The first, Rainham Mark Grammar School, provides a state education for selective students aged
11 to 18. The second, Twydall Primary School joined the MAT on 1 February 2016. The third, Riverside Primary
School joined the MAT on 1 April 2017,

The Trust had a total roll of 2132 in the school census in October 2019 across its three schools excluding
nursery provision.

Structure, governance and management
a. Constitution
The Academy is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity.

The charitable company's Memorandum of Association is the primary governing document of the Academy. On
27 January 2016, the members passed a special resolution to change the company’s name to RMET (formerly
Rainham Mark Grammar School). New articles of association were adopted on that day that converted the
previous single academy trust to a Multi Academy Trust {MAT).

The Trustees of RMET are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved ars included in
the Reference and administrative details on page 1.

b. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.

c. Trustees' indemnities
The trust has not given any indemnity to third parties on behalf of anhy of the trustees.
d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Members may appoint up to 7 trustees by ordinary resolution (Article 50)
The CEO is an ex-officio trustee
Trustees may appoint a co-opted trustee. A co-opted trustee is a person who is appointed to be a trustee
by being co-opted by trustees who have not themselves been so appointed (Article 58)
. There are no parent trustees as parent representation is at local governing body level as per Article 101A

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary,
induction will provide training in charity, educational, legal and financial matters. All trustees are given access to
the information needed (including policies, minutes, budgets, etc.,) to undertake their role as trustees using an
external training provider.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management {continued)

f. Organisational structure

The Board of Trustees, the majority of whom are non-executive, comprises those persons appointed under the
Articles of Association. Local Governing bodies operate at each academy under a scheme of delegated
authority. The Board meets six times a year and operates a circle model of governance with monitoring pairs,
aligned to the key Ofsted areas. There are 3 monitoring visits per year and reports submitted to the LGB and are
also reviewed by a nominated trustee who had oversight for that area. In addition we have re-introduced the
Audit Committee with representation from primary and secondary levels. Our Chair of Audit is appropriately
qualified.

The Academy Trust holds an Annual Meeting of the Members. At this meeting the following items are discussed:

. Auditor's feedback

Discussion re: Financial Situation of the Academy Trust
Issues relating to the Funding Agreement

Any change to the Articles of Association

Any motions of members or trustees

Appointing of Auditors for next year

Documentation for Companies House

Any other business

Trustees delegate specific responsibilities to local Governing Bodies, the activities of which are reported to and
discussed at RMET Board Meetings. Day to day management of the Trust is undertaken by the Chief Executive
Officer, supported by the Senior Management Team.

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The senior management team (SMT) are the key management personne! of the trust. Trustees are also senior
management although they receive no pay or other remuneration in respect of their role as trustees. Where staff
trustees are in place, they receive remuneration for their role as staff and their pay is determined in the same
way as applicable to all other staff. Further details of remuneration paid to staff who are trustees is set out within
the notes to the accounts.

The pay of the CEO is set annually by the Pay Committee, having regards to performance against objectives set

the previous year. Pay of other SMT members is also set by the Pay Committee again having regard to
performance against previously agreed objectives and any recommendations made by the CEO.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020
Structure, governance and management (continued)
h. Trade union facility time
Refevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 2
Full-time equivalent empioyee number 2

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees
0% 2
1%-50% -
51%-99% -
100% -
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £000
Total cost of facility time 7
Total pay bill 9,188

Percentage of total pay bill spent on fatility time %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time - %
hours

i. Engagement with employees {(including disabled persons)

RMET and the individual schools provide its employees with regular information via staff briefings, bulletins,
group emails and shared documents. The use of Microsoft Teams enables information to be widely shared.
Staff development days are held by individual schools and across the Trust. Staff are encouraged to be
proactive and contribute to school development plans and to share views and ideas. Regular consultations are
held with union representatives. Staff surveys are carried out to support decision making. School data, plans
and priorities are shared with all staff and discussion of progress regularly assessed and shared. The Trust
policies and practices with regard to disabled applicants and employees is fully inclusive and includes liaison with
outside agencies for advice and guidance where necessary.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Structure, governance and management {continued)

j- Engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the Academy

RMET follows the Trust finance handbook with regards to the relationship with suppliers. Limits on the number
of quotations or tendering required are defined in the handbook. A data base of regular suppliers is held on
Civica Resource. The Business Manager will select suppliers on the basis of their capacity to provide quality,
service, timely delivery and value for money. Consortia are used where they provide value for money. The
Purchase ledger is reviewed on a regular basis and invoices selected for payment. It is the policy of the School
to pay all invoices by the due date and also to take advantage of any discounts available for early settlement
where this is to the School's advantage. Invoices should not be paid early as a matter of course. If a supplier
does not specify payment terms we adopt a standard 30 day term. A register of business interests is held for all
Governors, senior staff and those key posts associated with purchasing.

Objectives and activities
a. Objects and aims

The principal object of the company is the advancement of education in the United Kingdom. It achieves this
object principally through the operation of three academies, the aim being to provide the highest possible
standard of education and pastoral care, maximising the life-chances of its students.

b. Objectives, strategies and activities

Objectives, strategies and activities of RMET

Executive Summary

RMET (Rainham Mark Education Trust) plans to grow to incorporate up to six schools. This plan seeks to
maximise efficiencies of scale, to provide an environment where teachers’ training and development is highly
motivating, ensuring outstanding learning for all the children and young people at our schools

Vision Statement

A family of local schools working together to provide outstanding pastoral care and inspirational teaching,
motivating all students to enjoy learning and achieve their potential within a community founded on mutual
respect,

Our Mission
To develop a group of local schools who will work together in partnership with parents and local communhity to
foster ambition and raise achievement for all young people in their care.

Our Values
Our core values for inclusive education value pastoral care at least as highly as academic achievement, and
protect the individual identity of each of the member schools.

Our Purpose

Rainham Mark Education Trust (RMET) exists to facilitate and deliver excellence in all aspects of education by

providing a framework in which local, like-minded schools can;-

: Maximise their effectiveness in delivering teaching which allows children and young peopie to excel in
their learning.

- Maximise the effectiveness of staff development and training.

- Maximise efficiency to enable the highest possible budget share to be used for teaching and learning
provision.

- Provide stimulating and safe learning environments where development as a person is as important as
academic achievement.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Objectives and activities {continued)

¢. Public benefit

In setting our objectives and planning our activities, the Trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commission's general guidance on public benefit.

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

a. Key performance indicators

The 2019-20 academic year was a successful period for RMET, including a “good” Ofsted for Riverside which
included “outstanding” judgements for both behaviour and attitudes and also personal development. Riverside
also confirmed their IQM “flagship” status, following assessment in July.

Riverside and RMGS remain very popular with growing numbers and Twydall have received recognition from
Medway LA for improvements to Early Years. Twydall also received praise from the Local Authority for
remaining open over the Easter holiday period for children of key workers and also providing a place of
education for children whose own schools had closed. All our school teams have managed the considerable
challenges and pressures created by Covid 19 with great resilience and professionalism, and high pupil
attendance figures continue.

Remote learning has been embraced with the growing use of live streaming on Microsoft Teams complementing
existing web-based resource platforms such as Moodle and Class Dojo. Video conferencing is now used
extensively across the Trust to great effect, improving both the efficiency and effectiveness of meetings.

Our local family of schools continue to make good progress during a very difficult year. A summary of 2020 Key
Stage 2 (from Term 4 data), GCSE and A Level results are shown below.

Year 6 Riverside
27 Chiidren, 16 Boys, 11 Girls, 15 Disadvantaged, 11 SEND

For this cohort's data we looked at where we believed the children would be at the end of the academic year.
We looked at the trajectory the children were on, termly tests and teacher assessments to make our predictions

Year 6 Attainment Riverside

Total 27 Boys 16 Girls 11 Disadvantaged SEND 11
15
Reading 74% (20) 69%(11) 82% (9) 73%(11) 45% (5)
Writing 70% (19) 63% (10} 82% (9) 67% (10) 36% (4
Maths 74% (20) 69% (11) 82% (9 73% (11 45% (5)
Combined 70% (19) 63% (10) 82% (9 67% (10) 36% (4)

Progress measures were calculated by measuring against children’s KS1 result. As a guide, expected progress
is going from expected attainment in Y2 to expected attainment in Y6. Better than expected progress is going
from expected attainment in Y2 to greater depth in Y6.
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Strategic report (continued)

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Achievements and performance (continued)

RMET

Y6 Progress Riverside (no KS1 data for 2 children in the cohort)

Total 25

Reading -
Expected
progress
Reading -
Better than
expected
progress
Writing - 100%
Expected
progress
Writing -
Better than
expected
rogress
Maths -

Expected

progress
Maths - Better  24% (6)

than expected
progress

Year 6 Attainment Twydall

20% (5)

24% (6)

Total 77

Reading
Writing

Combined

92% (23)

92% (23)

71% (55)
55% (42)
Maths 58% (45)
51% (39)

Boys 15
93% (14)

20% (3)

100%

40% (6)

87% (13)

33% (5)

Boys 29

72% (21)
48% (14)
62% (18)
48% (14)

Girls 10

90% (9)

20% (2)

100%

0%

100%

10% (1)

Girls 42

81% (34)
17% (28)
64% (27)
60% (25)
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Disadvantaged SEND 10
14

94% (13) 80% (8)
21% (3) 40% (4)
100% 100%

21% (3) 50% (5)
93% (13) 90% (9)
29% (4) 30% (3)

Disadvantaged SEND 19
24

67% (16) 42% (8)
42% (10) 21% (4)
46% (11) 32% (6)
42% (10) 16% (3)



Strategic report (continued)

{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Achievements and performance (continued)

RMET

Y6 Progress Twydall (no KS1 data for 6 children in cohort)

Total 71

Reading - 89% (63)
Expected

progress

Reading - 30% (21)
Better than

expected

progress

Writing - 79% (56)
Expected

progress

Writing - 10% (7)
Better than

expected

progress

Maths - 82% (58)
Expected

progress

Maths - Better 4% (3)
than expected

progress

Boys 29
90% (26)

28% (8)

79% (23)

7% (2)

90% (26)

3% (1)

Girls 42

88% (37)

31% (13)

79% (33)

12% (5)

76% (32)

5% (2)
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Disadvantaged SEND 19

24
88% (21)

25% (6)

75% (18)

8% (2)

79% (19)

34% (19)

79% (15)

11% (2)

68% (13)

5% (1)

79% (15)

0% (0)



RMET

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance {continued)

Rainham Mark Grammar School

GCSE 2020 - Summary of Results

12020 2019

Progress 8% 059 028

Eng & Maths (Strong Pass) T
Eng & Maths (Standard Pass}

Ebacc Achieved (Strong Pass 2017 tm f: 62 56

% 9-5 Grades 1. 928 907 17
% 94 Grades 31 973

"”39 cfff.‘fffj'99.[.”

SGrade di T 97?.

5Crade 4+ (nd.En&Ma) | 981 967

5 Grade 54+ (nd. En & Ma) e _ %5 - 9.5 -

Co-hort T 209

Boys 115 126

Girls 95 83

* Based on 2019 va!idatgd estimates

2018
0.36

6478 |
F S

890
95.9 -

2020 results use highest of centre assessed grade and calculated grade

Page 9

2017 :

0.24

s
i 994
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RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Performance against objectives in the 2019-20 RMET improvement plan

Monitoring and assessment of termly milestones continued during 2019-20 but this was interrupted by Covid
during Term 4 so the following information shows progress up to and including Term 3, with remaining
milestones rolled forward into the adjusted plan for 2020-21.

The Board have agreed four key strategic objectives which will steer the Trust's growth and development over

the period 2018-2021. These are:

1. Leadership and Governance: providing outstanding governance and executive leadership with clear
succession planning, clarity of structures and capability to review and refresh.

2, Teaching and Learning/Curriculum and Assessment (Academy Effectiveness): improving the quality of
provision in all our schools through curriculum review, intentional use of assessment, evidence-based
professional learning, leadership of teaching and approaches to pedagogy.

3. Quality Assurance and Accountability {Academy Performance and Progress): ensuring robust quality
assurance and self-evaluation both quantitively and qualitatively,

4, People as Partners (Central Services): ensuring a financially viable and sustainable multi-academy trust
that has the capacity to improve and recruit, develop and retain talent.

We have clear strategic aims built on our mission and values. Our three-year strategic plan aims to ensure that
the public, parents and stakeholders have confidence in our approach. We aim to deliver the best in:

Leadership and Governance SO1 (Leadership and Governance})

1. To ensure RMET trustees and senior staff act in the best interests of the trust in accordance with all
aspects of our Articles of Association, exhibiting all the required skills and abiities for outstanding
leadership (including clarity of relationships, effective oversight and sustainability, whilst achieving the
greatest possible economies).

Success criteria; LGBs and school leaders overwhelmingly support board decisions (evidence: LGB and
meeting minutes); Board decisions show clear rationale and support the Trust's strategic objectives
{evidence: minutes, annual RMET meeting for schools); Board has high profile with schools (evidence:
LGB visits; school visits; annual COGs meeting with CEQ).

2. To maintain clear governance and managerial relationships, effective oversight and support structures for
the greatest possible economies and sustainability.

Success criteria: Governance at local and Trust level is at least Good, they effectively discharge their
duties. Strong govemance ensures that schools are using funding effectively, including PPG funding;
attainment is improving, the aftainment gap is narrowing, and progress measures are strong. Schemes of
Delegation are in place and used effectively. Clerking is highly effective and demonstrates a high level of
knowledge and understanding of education, governance and fegal frameworks.

3 To develop future leaders and effective succession planning for the Trust.
Success criteria; all schools have well supported leaders with no leadership vacuums on a change in
headship; NPQH / NPQSL programmes in place and in use. There is a full succession plan for all levels of
leadership from the CEQ through to Middle Leadership.

4, To grow the Trust in a measured way to ensure that standards are maintained and improved.

Success criferia: expansion of Trust does not resulf in a dip in the performance of any existing Trust
schools,
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RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance (continued)

Teaching and Learning/Curriculum and Assessment SO2 (Academy Effectiveness)
1. To ensure that our Academies provide the very best teaching and learning environments to promote high
quality learning for all children and young people.

Success Criteria: all children and young people in the Trust access the very best teaching and high-quality
leaming environments and this has a direct impact on the qualtty of learning and outcomes; school data
will show a consistent pattern in academic performance and end of Key Stage results will be above
national averages by the end of the plan.

2. To implement a CPD programme to ensure that our staff have the right skills to raise standards further,
deliver high quality teaching and learning tailored to the needs of their pupils, and disseminate best
practice to ensure rapid improvement.

Success criteria: an established CPD programme which includes in-house and external support
mechanisms for all staff; there is a Middfe and Senior Leaders pathway for professional development:
CPD is effectively tailored to individual school need based upon self-evaluation and the Categorisation of
Support; best practice will be disseminated across the Trust schools.

Quality Assurance and Accountability SO3 (Academy Performance and Progress)

1. To ensure that there is a rigorous and robust pregramme of Quality Assurance and self-evaluation that
supports all staff to build expertise, capacity and raise standards, so delivering the best possible outcomes
for all our pupils.

Success Criteria: a consistent process of school self-evaluation that is effectively quality assured by the
Trust; support provided by the Trust based upon clear calegorisation (via the Categorisation of Support
documents); taifored support provided by the Trust Improvement Lead/l eadership consulfants; expertise
within the Trust is utilised and monitored fo ensure effective peer-to-peer support across Trust schools.

2. To ensure the Trust embeds the operational structures that will support Academies to provide outstanding
teaching and learning and actively share best practice in order to secure the best possible learning
outcomes for all children.

Success criteria: Leadership mestings, Performance reviews, the Data Cycle and use of Key Performance
Indicators are clearly structured across the year; Schemes of Delegation and the Categorisation of
Support are followed to support the school journey; information is quality assured and friangulated at Trust
level.

3. To ensure that all schools improve their Ofsted grading if they were requiring improvement or in special
measures on joining the Trust; or maintaining their grading if good or outstanding on joining.

Success Criteria: All schools graded at least Good by Ofsted within the three-year plan; all schools
currently graded Good or better at least maintain that grading throughout the plan.

b. Going concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy trust
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it
continues fo adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financizl statements. Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Strategic report {continued)
Achievements and performance {continued)

¢. Promoting the success of the company

RMET uses a risk register to identify risks to the Trust and individual schools and mitigate those risk identified.

Financial review

We receive our income from a number of different sources. The majority of our income comes from central
government via the Education and Skills Funding Agency who provide us with grant, based largely on our
student numbers to cover our staffing and other general running costs (General Annual Grant - GAG). The ESFA
may provide us with additional grants which are earmarked for specific purposes (such as Pupil Premium which
must be used to raise the attainment of disadvantaged pupils). These appear in the accounts as DFE/ESFA
grants. Where we recsive grant or other funding from the Local Authority (such as where we undertake
responsibilities on their behalf in respect of our students) this appears in the accounts as Other government
grants. Such income is collectively referred to as “Restricted Funds”. Other income is received from parents (for
example as contributions to trip or other costs) and from third parties (for example from our bank for interest on
our account balances or from others who are charged for their use of our facilities). Such other income may be
restricted or unrestricted, depending on whether it comes to us with conditions as to its use or whether it is
available for spending at the discretion of the trustees.

We hold funds in two broad categories, funds which are available for spending and other funds which are not
available for spending.

Spendable funds are in turn sub-categorised between those which are available for spending at the discretion of
trustees ("Unrestricted Funds”) and those which are subject to condition or restriction, (“Restricted Funds").
Funds not available for spending include the book value of fixed assets such as land, buildings and equipment.
These have a value and are therefore inciuded as assets in the accounts but clearly, we cannot spend this value.
In common with all academies and Local Authorities, our share of the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit
must also be reflected in our accounts and as this is not a conventional liability, it does not need to be deducted
from spendable funds. We meet our obligations in respect of the LGPS by paying over pension contributions due
as calculated by the scheme’s actuaries.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

The following balances held were held at 31 August:

2020 2019
Fund {ate
ol £'000 £'000
GAG Restricted General Funds 1,395 731
Other DFEf ESFA Grants Restricted General Funds 68 15
Other Income Restricted General Funds - 285
Sub-Total General Restricted Funds 1,463 1032
Unspent Capital Grants Resiricted Fixed Asset Fund b6 . 147
Other income Unrestricted Gereral Fund 579 531
Sub-Total Spendable Funds 645 1,710

Net Book Value of Fixed Assets  Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 26,327 27,439
‘Bhare of LGPS Deficit Restricted Pension Reserve {5,562} {4,335}
23473 24,814

During the year under review, there was a surplus/ (deficit) of £431k (2019: £(185K)) on general restricted funds,
a surplus/ (deficit) of £48k (2019: £28k) on unrestricted funds and after LGPS valuation adjustments,
depreciation and capital income and expenditure, an overall surplus/ (deficit) of £(1,341k) (2019: £(1,036k)).

a. Reserves Policy

The principal policy on reserves is that accumulation of unspent GAG balances should not breach any limits
thereon set out in the Funding agreement. The level of reserves should never be in deficit. The trust has
established a Reserves Policy to protect the organisation by providing a financial cushion against an
unpredictable future. This restricts the impact of internal or external risks upon continuing operations. The most
significant risk with reference to continuing operations and the need for available funds relate to:

. The maintenance and replacement of the Trust’s asset base
Any possible delay in the receipt of grant funds
Protection against falling pupil roll in Twydall Primary School and the reduction in high needs funding.

. Protection against the growing pupil roll in Riverside Primary School and the associated costs and the
reduction in high needs funding.
. Protection against the potential growing pupil roll in Rainham Mark Grammar School and the need for

additional accommodation to meet this need including an increase in laboratory facilities and additional
accommodation for the sixth form students.
. Protection against the reduction in sixth form funding in maintaining a broad A leve! curriculum.

Each year the Trustees review the resource requirements and grant and other income that is forecast for the
coming year and an annual budget is formulated and approved.

b. Investment policy

There are no investments held beyond cash deposits retained with the major UK clearing banks. Speculative
investments are not permitted.
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RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the company is exposed, in particular those relating to
academic performance, finances and child welfare. The trustees have implemented a number of systems to
assess risks that the Academy faces, and have developed policies and procedures to mitigate those risks.
Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The
Academy has an effective system of internal financial controis and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

The risk management process has been codified in a risk register implemented by the Senior Leadership Team
and overseen by Trustees.

The principal financial risk faced by the company is that on-going pressure on funding results in a risk that
deficits may be experienced. The budgeting and reporting process, including scrutiny by the trustees of actual
financial performance, mitigates the risk.

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the company is relatively simple (bank balances, debtors
and “trade” creditors), trustees consider the associated risk in this area to be minimal.

The risk resulting from the company’s share of the LGPS deficit is managed by foliowing the advice of the
scheme’s actuaries, specifically as regards the level of contributions payable, ensuring that annual budgets are
drawn up to reflect the actuary’s advice.

Most of the company’s income is obtained from the DfE {via the Education and Skills Funding Agency) in the
form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE
during the year ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statement of financial activities.

Fundraising

The trustees have assessed the major risks to which the company is exposed, in particular those relating to
academic performance, finances and child welfare. The trustees have implemented a number of systems to
assess risks that the Academy faces, and have developed policies and procedures to mitigate those risks.
Where significant financial risk still remains they have ensured they have adequate insurance cover. The
Academy has an effective system of internal financial controls and this is explained in more detail in the
Governance Statement.

The risk management process has been codified in a risk register implemented by the Senior Leadership Team
and overseen by Trustees.

The principal financial risk faced by the company is that on-going pressure on funding results in a risk that
deficits may be experienced. The budgeting and reporting process, including scrutiny by the trustees of actual
financial performance, mitigates the risk.

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the company is relatively simple (bank balances, debtors
and “trade” creditors), trustees consider the associated risk in this area to be minimal.

The risk resulting from the company's share of the LGPS deficit is managed by following the advice of the
scheme’s actuaries, specifically as regards the level of contributions payable, ensuring that annual budgets are
drawn up to reflect the actuary’s advice.

Most of the company’s income is obtained from the DfE (via the Education and Skills Funding Agency) in the
form of recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE
during the year ended 31 August 2020 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the
statement of financial activities.
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RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

Each school in the Trust is conscious of reducing carbon emissions and where possible have taken the following
measure to improve:
. Changing to energy saving light bulbs

Switching off lights in empty ciassrooms

Reducing heating levels where possible

. Investigate replacement of oil fired boilers
. Use of renewable energy in any new construction
. Pianting additional trees

The Academy's greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption are as follows:

2020
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions {(KWh) 2,378,952
Energy consumption breakdown (kWh):
Gas 1,682,360
Electricity 653,041
Solar 18,352
Gas oil 25,199
Scope 1 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Gas consumption 309.34
Gas oil 69.49
Total scope 1 378.83
Scope 2 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivaient):
Purchased electricity 152.25
Scope 3 emissions (in tonnes of CO2 equivalent):
Business travel in employee-owned or rental vehicles 0.48
Total gross emissions (in tonnes of C02 equivalent): 531.56
Intensity ratio:
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil 0.25
Tonnes of CO2 equivalent per staff FTE 2.61

The Academy has followed and used the following quantification and reporting methodologies:
. the 2018 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines;

. the GHG Reporting Protocol - Corporate Standard: and

) the 2020 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The chosen intensity ratio is total gross emissions in tonnes of CO2 equivalent per pupil, the recommended ratio
for the sector.
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Plans for future periods

Turning strategy into action

It is essential that our strategic planning is realised through effective o

RMET

(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)

For the year ended 31 August 2020

each strategic objective is supported by an annual improvement plan,

| = initiated. O = ongoing, R = reviewed  Green = achieved, Amber = good progress, Red = more work needed

Strategic objective 1 (SO1): Leadership and Governance - Providing outstanding governance and executive

perational delivery. On the following pages,

leadership with clear succession planning, clarity of structures and capability to review and refresh.

The quality of leadership is fundamental to the success of the Trust and creating confidence in it from interested

parties (DfE, RSC) and potential joiners and ensuring accurate compliance with academy regulations.

in the Trust fram the CEQ o Middle
Leaders in each of the Academies.

planning is ragulary reviewad to ensare
that he LGB and schoof ieadership are
sirahg.

indicators of success
Year 1 {2018-2019) Year 2 (2018-2028) Year 3 (2020-2021)
New RMET board members and ‘There ara no vacan<ies on the boand and effeckve succession planning is i place
direclozs are ully inducted; commiiteas
comply with statufory quidance
All Trust schools have fully fmctioning | There are no vacancies on local LGBs, Policy of and practice from LGBs is in
LGBs Ihat provide cffective challange 1o | minutes suppoit effective challenge and | Yine will Trust policy and practice.
schoal leaders evidenced by minutes accouniability and succession planning is
and the extemal review of govemance. | in place; EGBs work eftsctively with Trust
support where appropyiate.
Adl schools have sizble leadership All Trust schools have confident heads The Trust has flexible leadership
teams, Trust support is appropriate aad | whoe understand thefr rote and show that capacily with the experance and ability
effeciive; early intesvention is they are effective i deiving up standards. | io supper across more than one
tinderiaken where necessary based Trust support is tallored based uponthe | organisation. Fiiure leaders are
upon the categorisation of suppost outcomes of the review cycle and the identified aad provided CPD
categorisation of support. opportunities to further their skills.
Succession Planning has been The Trust has added a Vice Chalr ¢f The Trust appoinis a Depuly GEO 1p
introdizced to ensure that there is a Trustees and Trust improvement £nsure shrong leadership for the Trast,
clarity oves the direction of leadership Lead/t eadership consultants o provide This will be dependent on geowth in the
and governance in the iust The the operational support for the Primary Trust and implemeniing the growth plan
planning considers all tiers of leadership | ssctor in the Trmst. Loeal sucrassion inYear 3.
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods {continued)

501  2818-2020

What wil we do? |

Providing
outstanding
govemnance and
executve
leadership aith
clear succession
planning, clanty of|
structures and
capability to
review and
refresh

1 Implementthe Circie '
Model of Governarnice

72 | T3 |Planned Outcomes and Targets

111 Governor's meelings planned
into 3 imely and appropnate pattern to
effectively form a conduit between the
Trust Board and the schogl

112 Convene a working pary o
ensurs the effective implementation of
the Circle Mode!

1.13 Prepare supporting
decumentation including role
descriptions, Terms of Reference and
visit schedules for 2049-2020.

114  Montor the implementation of
the Circle Model

115 Worikng 'pamfta reviewthe
imptementation of the Circle Moded

116  Annual governance day (wit

2040472020 for all Governors across
the Trust to review curment operational
structures
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RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

Pianned Dutcomes and Targets

501  2019.2020|What will we do? T 72 | T3
Providing 2 Complete an annual - 121 The Trustwide skills auditis
oulstanding Audit of the requirements completedfor all Governors and
governance and Jof each LGB1e ensure Trustees.
execuive Trust support and CPD
leaderstip with  opponuniies are fuifilled
cledr succession : - e = :
planring, clardy of 122 The auditis collated and skills
struclures and gapsfrequiremants for CPD are
capabm_ty to identified,
review and
refrash. 123 The Trust provides
CPDraming for GovernonTrustee skl
gaps
124 From the audits each LGB
wreates a Govemnor's action pian for
#ach indviduat school.
125 The Circle of Governance
model will enable the Trustto support
sialis gaps for indwidual schools.
SO1  2019.2020|What wil we do? Flanned Outcomes and Yargets
Providing 3  Focussed Support 131 Focussed support plans are
oulstanding  [Plans e-nsure_mat the generated for terms 12, 34 and W6
goverpance and |correct level of Trust using the Trust Improvemant Plan, the
executve intenention is dentifieg school's SOP/SEF and inyear
leadershipwith  |and implemented in each requirements.
clear succession |school. 2 - -
planning, clanty of 132 Regquirements are discussed
strictures and with each HT and completed plans are
capakbily to shared
review and ‘ 3 i
pet e 133 The focussed support planis

reviewed by the GEQ and TIL at the end
of each term.

134 Recommendalions!
regquirements are shared with the Trust
Boardinterms 3 5 and 5.

135 Trustsupportis approprate
and effective for the needs of the
indmadual schoals  Eardy intervention is
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Trustees' Report (continued)
Fer the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods {continued)

501 zm‘s.zszelwnat wil wea do?

T3 (Pianned Duicomes aad Targels

Providing
outstanding
govemnance and
execuhve
leadership with
ofear suecession
planning, clarily of
structures and
capabiity to
reviews and
refresh

4 Board and FGHs

141 Schools coflect localised data

receive clear everyterm {o analyse progress and
perchmarking data work lowards annual targeis.

across the trust ncluding |

the profile of teaching and 142 Behools collect management
learning, attainment data, information data {see manigement
progress data and informabon sheet) )

i e 743 Schools coliate the profie of

teaching and learming

144 Datarepors prowded for CEQ.
LGBs and Trust Board in terms 1, 3
and 6 to show stafding points, rmid-year
and end of year daia.

145 1GBs andTrustBoarg
scrutinise and chatlenge progress
towards targets

148 Board and committees can
eastly analyse the effectivepess of
schools andthe trust by comyparisons
within and across the frust and
nationally

501 20182020

What will we do?

Pianned Qutcomes and Targets

Providinig
cutstanding
|governance and
execulive
|leadership with -
tlear succession
planning, clardy of
struciures and
capabilfy to
resew and
refresh

5 Ensure ihat new

2018.2018).

RMET Trustees or schoo!
based Govemnors are fully
inducied {continued from

151 Anupdated Governor
Harndiook, Terms of Reference and
CPD programme is akigned with the
Circie of Governance model

152 The derkinducts all new
GovernorsiTrusiees

183 New GovernorsiTrusiees
complete the skils audit and are
signposted to relevant CPD training
required far their role

154 Al new trustees/governces
have a clear undersianding of their
toles and responsibififres
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

501 2015-2020

What will wa do?

T3 |pianned Outcomes and Targets

31
Providing & .Ensure that all tiers
outstanding leaderstup ang
governance and: | governance have bean
execubive |involved in discussing
leaderstip with | Buccession Planning
clear successian |(where appropriate)
pianning. clanty of}
structures and
capability to
review and
refresh

161 The Trust ras identfied fulure
leadership needs hoth 1n terms of the
Trust tself and the needs of indnidual
schools

162 Schools have identified and
provided supporCPD to potentat
leaders in education or adranistrabon

183 Perdormance management
provides a clanty over the skills and
aspirations of schoot staff at alf levels

164 The Trusthas a clear plan for
‘Sliccession at all levels of leadership
and has made new appointments in
Year 2 and in the event of leadership
change has dlarily over what is
required at ali Jeveis of the Trist
{succession planning i tis sense will
focus on the teaderstup and this will
incluge internal and external

candidates
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Trustees' Report {continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

8 Ensure thatthereis a

§D1 20152020 |What wil we do? T T2 Planned Outcomes and Targels
Prividing T Commission a pupi 17 1The Trust has commissioned an
outstanding premum feview to external Pupd Premium review,
governance and | scrubnise how each _
exgtitve scheal in the Trustis 17 2 The MTSA cany out the cross
leadershipwith  |spending its pupi Trust review and make
tlear succession |premitm fundmng and’ recommeridaiens for improving the
planning, clanty of |identify approaches use of Pupit Prerium funding The
struclures and  |shown to e effective in review will take place fromwin 14
capability to tmproving the October 2018 _
Teviaw and achievemeri of 17 3HTs provide a local action plan for
refresh disadvaniaged pupis. devalopments to Pupil Premium
funding.
17 4 The Trust monitors the
implementation of each tocal actien
plan.

18 1 The Trust reviews curent policy

consistent approach to structures and clanfies the expectation
palicy review and public ofthe public facihg documentation
fating decumentation.

1.8.2 The RMET, RMGS, Riverside ang
Twydall websies are updated based
tpon the recommendations from the
policy review

1.8 3 The Trust Board monitors the
mplementation of the policy review in
terms 3 and B

Strateglc objective 2 (S02): Teaching and Learning/Curriculum and Assessment - improving the quality of provision in
all our schaols through curriculum review, infentional use of assessment, evidence-based professianal leamning, leadarship
of teaching and approaches fo pedagogy.

Every school in the Trust must aspire for continued improvement. The Trust will ensure that it invests in and
facilitates rapid and sustainable improvement in all our schools.
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Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

ohservahon, targel sefting and review
This is ased to inform the Trust of best
praclice ia teaching. and feaming 5o that it
tan be share¢ across ail schools

inticators of success

Year 1 (2016-2019) Year Z (2015-20289) Year 3 (2020-2021)

A profile of teaching across alf schools i@ | The Trust has an esiabished mode for profassional leaming and development that
the Trust s clearly established through inchirdes coaching. classroom practice and engagement m ressarch ulilising

subjechphase expests from schiools in the frust.

A clear strateqy is developed by the Trust | A professional development programme is | The Trust embeds a professional

to ensure that feaching and leamisg estabhished across the Trust that supports | development programme that
leaders &re ulised efiechvaly. and gh- | career progression of middle andsemior | supporis carger progression of middle
quality systems and procedures are leaders and seqior leaders  Capacity for
asiablshed to measure their affeckveness improvenent is sustaned and

Gt improving leaming. extended wiilin and beyond the tust
There i a robust imoderaBion cydls for the A Trusl wide sidtegy for moderation is i The Trust stratedy is reviewed and
quality of work and the place which inchides nternal Trust wide updated basad upon the oufcomes of
achievementsioutcomes of puplls ineach | and extemat vafidation of guality ofwork | Year2.

academy and the achievemanis/oulcomes of pupis,

‘Cusriculum delegation has been reviewad
basad upoa the Categorisation of Support
document. A responsive monitorng
process is m place based upon the aceds
ofthe acadeary. Cuntculum design is
included in Trust wide discussions.

CutTicuium 06Sign 15 mEkdad i Trust wide OISGUSSIonS 1o alow 3a0emies
giscuss new developments and the Trust o monitarfvalidate new cumcuium

slructyres.

There s a clarity over ihe Infentional use” | A common cycle of standardised Al systems ave reviewed io ensure

of assesement across the academies assessments has bgen embedded acfoss | thet the standardised assessments

The purposes, wnpact and usefulness of | the Trust. The assessments are used to | are fdforpurpose

assessments used across ihe Trusthave | inform the requirements of the

been identified The cycia of standardised | Calegonsalion of School Support

assessment has been reviewad
:g’- 2018 ihat wit we do? T2 | T3 |Planned Outcomes and Targets
' 1 Ensure all schools n 211 HTs idankfv skiis gaps, CPD

. the Trust have aceess o epportumbes and potential leaming
Improvingthe | o cional leaming teaders through the schooi profile of
qualityef. 1o oonred by Trust teaching and teaming
prowvision in aif our, expertise/_sadership | _
schoots through 1,1 onre 212 Trust expertised_eadership
cummicuium review, consultants provide professional
intentiona! use of learning and deveiopment that
assessment, incluges coaching, classroom practice
evidence-based and engagement in research based an
professional the need of each school. The support
I iig'éffﬁm . provided will be detailed in the
beaching and Fecussed Support Plans
appraaches to 11213 Trust monitonng ensures that
pedagogy, the professional leaming impacls upon
the professional tearning of staf




RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Trustees' Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

g";ﬂ 2008 natwit we do? 71 | 12 | 73 |Manned outcomes and Targets

improving the 2 The Trustwill 221 Middle leaders from RMES

quality of manitor and provide provide cumculum expertise for

prowsien i all our] support tr cummicuium rdentified subject areas in each pnmary

schools through | development, teaching schood.

curnculum review, |and leaming {including

intentionat use of |behaviour for teaming)

assessment and moderalion using

evidence-based |Trust experise from 222 AMalhs specialistis prowded

professional rmuddle and semor from RMGE to bath Pnimary schools

leaming, leaders

leadérship of

teaching and :

approaches to 223 Finance is devolved to gach

pedagogy primary school to provide additional
English expertise in each school.
224 ThHere are clear impact
measures for the interventions from
specialisis.
225 The Trustcan show that the
interventions and staff deploymentis
value for monay.

:g; 2019 | onat witt we do? ™ T3 |Pianned Outcomes and Targets

improving the The Trust will monitor 221 LAschool-based moderaiors

glahly of angd provide support i from Riverside provide supportio

provision in alf our| curnculum development, ensure that modaration 15 consistent

schools through  fteaching and leaming and it kine with LA moderatien

curnculum review, | (including behaviour for renyiraments

intentionat use of [leaming? and moderation 222 There s a Uear stategy for

assessment, using Trust expertise deploying Trust expertise to support

evtdence-based |from middle and sentor Twst schools clanfied ai the Joint Inset

professional leaders. an 117" Getober 20418

learming :

leadership of 223 Measurable sulcomes are set

teaching and for interventions by Trust experise.

approaches o . .

pedagogy 224 Trust monitering ensures that

Trust experise is having an impast on
curricutum development, teaching and
learning and moderaton prachces
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Trustees’ Report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Plans for future periods (continued)

502 319-

Page 24

2620 [What will we do? T 174 T3 |Piasned Catcomes and Targels
Improingthe |3  Introduce a robust 231 There s a Trust wide
qualiy of rmoderation cycle which Moderation and Assessment Policy.
provision it all ourfensures that
schools through  Jassessment judgemenis
cumculum review, fare consisient and 232 Woderation dates are agreed
mtenttonal use of |accurate with natronal for internal, Trust and external
assessment, exemplfication across moderation -
evidence-based |the MAT (continued from
professional  [2018-2018) 233 Moderation dales are added o
leaming, the Trust calendar. '
leadership of
';e;;h;:g_;’go 234 The moderation cycle s
' mplemeanted for all Key Stages
pedagogy |m g
235 Tmstfeedback identifies areas
ior develepment in the Trust
moderatton cycle.
;?223 21U ‘What witl we do? T 1z T3 |Pianned Outcomes and Targets
improwing the 4 Monior curncusien 241 Cumculum statemenis and
quabty of |implementation and documentation are in place for at
prowisien in alf our] developrment o seeure schools in the Trust
schools through | continuous improvement
curnculum review, 242 Tristexpettise is usedto
interdional use of support the ongoing developmant of
assessment, curficuium statements
edgence-based
professional 243  Trust mentoring identifies
feamning. gaps In curmiculum planniag or
leadership of impiementation through CEOMT
teaching and tiscussions {weekly) and HT Report to
approaches to the Trust Boardin terms 1. 2 and §.
pedagogy
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Trustees® Report (continued)
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Plans for future periods (continued)

502 20138
207G

What will we do?

Improwng the
quality of
provision in gl our
schools through
clmculum review,

5  Moniorthe purpose, |

impact and use of
assessment across the
Trust

T3 [Planned Ontcomes and Targels

1251 Data and assessment
systems are fitfor purpose in pach

1252 Schools collect data every term
{o andlvse progress and work towards

intentional use of
assessment
evidence-based
professienal
{earning,
{eadership of
feaching and
approaches io
pedagogy.

annual targets

[253 Progress and attainment
milestones revewed termily

254 Consistent riata reporis
collated for each school.

LGBs and Trust Board in ferms 1, 3

| and end of year data

1255 Data reports provided for CEO,

and 6 to show starling points, mid-year

2568 1GBs and Trust Board
scrulinise and challenge progress
towards targets '

Strategic objective 3 (SO3): Quality Assurance and Accountability (Academy Performance and
Progress) - Ensuring robust quality assurance and self-evaluation both quantitively and qualitatively.

The Trust will ensure that it invests in and facilitates rapid and sustainable improvement in all our schools.
Robust quality assurance, accurate self-evaluation and accountability are crucial to achieving this objective.

“Indicators of succesa
Year 1 (2098.2019) Year 2 (2019.2020) | Year 3 (2020-2021]
A Trust-wide school improvement stratepy Strategy connesis to &l Trust schools’ Improvement plans
Is in piace. ' '
Each schiool has-accurate self-evaluation | A consistent Spproach & seif-evalualion | A network of extemal sudic parners
{hat ulffises: 1s embedded across the Trust and from good andsor outstanding schools
) qualily assured by the Trust established to test our capacily to sei-
- Angsrahassmmem agamstie | ymprovement Lead: 255085 and set ambilious targets
Bystems are i piace to ensuse that the
+  Schod performance data Trust has a cohesive overview of the
i sirengths and needs of sach individoal
= Tha profile of teaching and school so that Trust suppoit can be
tearning tailored
*  Ofsled inspections sutcomes Peer raview is fully embedded znd
at an operational fevel Tmprovement pians.

Devetop consistent Trust wide Facking
documents including KM dashboard and
RMET Perfarmance Indicator document

Embed the racking documents o ensura fat e Trust can benchmark individual
schodls, set asprational targets and create a culture of high expeetations

and BlueSky tg track progress and

measure the impact of inlerventions

towards Trust objectives.

Infroduce Trus] ied Qually Assurance of Embed 2 Guallly Assusrance sirategy 1o Bevelop Sapior Leaders in Education
the monitering of Teaching and Leaming ensure the quaity of teaching and ‘to-share experise across the Trust and
across all schools. ieaming acrass all scheols. support in areas efnead.
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Plans for future periods (continued)

503  2018-

T1

2020 What witt we do? 12 73  [Pinned Qutcomes and Targets
Ensuring robust |1 Provide agreed 111 CEOMTs agfee meeting
qgualiy assurance [Operahonal Timeframes structure and operatenal smeframes
and self- and documentation jfor 2018-2020
evatuation both
quantiively and
qualitatively 112 Glerk generates the Trust
calendar for 20-19-2020
113 Trustimprovement Plan is
written and agreed for 2013-2020
114 TrustImprovement Plan andg
mdividual school SEFISDPs are
_[aligned where appropnale.
115 The Trust Board ratifies the
Trust improvement Plan
zs‘?; o What will we do? 71 12 T3 Pianned Outcomes and Tanjets
Ensuringrobust |2  Anaiyse histoncal, 321 School-based analysis for
quality assurance Jtrend and demographic histoncal, trend and demographic data |
and self- data fo gain an in depth has seen updated to inciude the
evainatron both  Junderstanding of the outcomes for 20118-2018.
gquantfively and  |context for each school
gualitatively

322 AILGE and Trust Board
members are aware of the Frends for
‘each school.

322 The Trust Board uses fhe
contextual data to scrulinise areas for
development and support school target
sefting,

324 Adrional analysis from e
published ASP and1DSR 15 added io
the analysis inferm 2. _
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Plans for future periods (continued)

;?2:; 2018- What wisl we do? - 12 T Pianaed Ouicomes and Targels
Ensuring robust |3.  Set aspirational 334 Targets are set by each HT
gquakity targets hased on with a drive towards being above
|assurance and [context and identfied Nationat in ail areas,
{self-evaluatfon |need in sub- groups.
.H_imﬂl qaantitively _ -
and quahtatively 332 Targets are scrutintsed and
-agreed to secure appropriate
challenge by the CEOMrust Boadrd.
333 Inyeardatdis scrutifisedto
check for progress towards targels
throtighout the year.
334 Datais scrubinised and
chaltenged by the Trust Board at three
oints durng the year
;2; 2018- What wilt we do? T1 T2 T3 St and Targets
Ensuring robust |4 Establish clear. 341 Progress and attainment
guahly assurance |progress and attatnment mulestones reviewed ter
and self- rrulestones and montor 342 Consictent data dashboards
evaluation both | progress fowards targets. presented to CED, LGBs and Trust
guaniitively and Board in terms 1, 3 and 6 1o show
quatitatively starting points mid-year and end of
pear gala ’
343 LGBs and Trust Board
scrufimse and challenge progress
fowards targets
5 Trustvalidation of 351 HTs agree a consfstent
each schools SEF SEFSDP sfruciure io vnplement
including faciiitated peer across alt schools which accurately
to peer support reflects the position. sirengths ang
{conbnued from 2018- negds of the schools
2018). 352 Trustcan easily validate each
SDPYSEF and facilitate peer suppart
where approphate
:;?;g 2019- What will we do? - Plaaned Outcomes and Targe!

361 HTs agree 3 consistent

Ensuring robust |6  Trustvalidation of
reporbng struchure io collate and repor

quality assurance |each school's analysis of |

and self- their profile of feaching | . _{on the profile of teaching and teatning |
evaluafion both  fand learning {contnued 362 HT coltates an oufime of the

quantitively and  [from 2018-2018} . e of teaching and leamin
gualhitatively 1 363 Trust monitors the profite of
teaching and learmning through joint
lesson cbservations and HT

|| discussions.

364 HT repors on the profile of
‘tteaching and learning to the Trust
Board interms 1 3 and b

365  Trust Board scrutinise and
challenge areas of developmentfor
teaching and [earming




RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)
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Plans for future periods (continued)

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The academy holds and distributes 16 — 19 Bursary funding on behalf of the ESFA and Science Learning
Partnership funds. Full details are set out in note 31 to the accounts.

Disclosure of information to auditors

insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditors are unaware, and
. that Trustees have taken ali steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and fo establish that the auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

The auditors, Williams Giles Professional Services Ltd, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. The
Trustees will propose a motion reappointing the auditors.

The Trustees’ Report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the
company directors, on 14 December 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

R Lawrence
Chair of Trustees
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Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that RMET has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
RMET and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.
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Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 8 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
R Lawrence, Chair 7 8
T Whittaker, Vice Chair 8 8
A Bovis 8 8
N Goodall 8 8
E Jackson 2 8
C Lane 8 3
S Decker 8 8
S Mason 8 8
C Easton 0 8

There were some key changes in the composition of the board this year. E Jackson resigned from the Board
after a long association with RMGS and was one of the initial founding members for RMET. C Easton was
removed from the trust board due to a change in her circumstances which prevented her from attending
meetings. T Whittaker had notified the board of his intention to step down as Chair, due to increased pressures
of work but would remain as a trustee. The Vice Chair, R Lawrence, was approved as the new Chair effective
the start of the new academic year September 20.

The board put significant energy and resource into Twydall to help stabilise the LGB after it was left depleted
both in terms of numbers of governors and skills.

An external governance review was carried out in June 2019 by the NGA and the recommendations

implemented in the academic year September 19 to August 20. Key areas of focus were;

. creating separation between each tier of governance — this has now been completed with no overlap at
any level. Whilst this created separation, a governor recruitment drive was undertaken to replace those
trustees who had sat at LGB level and was based on the annual skills audit which identified skill gaps

. keeping the constitution of the LGB’s under regular review

. reducing attendance of HTs and Chair's at the Trust Board unless specifically required

. adopting a new policy review process so only statutory policies and key non-statutory policies are
reviewed at trust level. School policies delegated to HT's.

. increasing trust board meetings to six times a year and LGB’s to five times per year
introducing a chairs forum to improve two-way communication has been welcomed by the chairs of the
LGB's
more clearly defined development plans with key priorities easily identified

Governors and Trustees are asked to consider the impact of each meeting they hold and evaluate their

performance. This is recorded on the minutes for each meeting. Governors and Trustees are recruited with
reference to the skills audit carried out annually to ensure that sufficient expertise is maintained across the Trust.
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Governance (continued)

The Audit Committee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to maintain oversight
of the trust's governance, risk management, internal control and value for money framework. Trustees took the
decision to re-instate the Audit Committee in 19-20 after the Academy Finance Manual was updated in Sept 19:
3.6 “trusts must either have a dedicated audit committee or can combine it with another committee”

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible
A Bovis (Chair) 1 1
R Lawrence 1 1
T Whittaker 0 1

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value
in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational
and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Academy’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy has
delivered improved value for money during the year by using results from a standard monthly-check on spending
to advise the Trustees on financial due diligence and best value on purchasing and contracts. The accounting
officer checks have been verified in the external audit process.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in RMET for the year 1 September 2019 to 31
August 2020 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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The purpose of the system of internal control {continued)

Capacity to handle risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy's
significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of
Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The Academy's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information

and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability.
In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees.
. regular reviews by the Board of Trustees of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
. setting targets to measure financial and other performance
. clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
. identification and management of risks

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from Williams Giles

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of
checks on the Academy's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:

. testing of payroll systems
. testing of purchase systems
. testing of control account/ bank reconciliations

On an annual basis, the auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the audit committee on the operation of
the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees financial responsibiliies and annually
prepares a short annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings,
recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.
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The risk and control framework (continued)

Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the auditor;

the work of the external auditors;

the financial management and governance self-assessment process;

the work of the executive managers within the Academy who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the audit committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the
system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on their behalf by:

Mw

R Lawrence er
Chair of Trustees Accounting Officer
Date: 14 December 2020
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of RMET | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Board of Trustees and
the Education and Skilis Funding Agency (ESFA)} of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
terms and conditions of all funding received by the Academy, under the funding agreement in place between the
Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

| confirm that | and the Academy Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019,

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered

to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA.

S Decker

Accounting Officer
Date: 14 December 2020
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law,
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020;

make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information

included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behaif by:
R Lawrence

Chair of Trustees
Date: 14 December 2020
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Independent Auditors' Report on the financial statements to the Members of RMET

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of RMET (the "academy’) for the year ended 31 August 2020 which
comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related
notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2020 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

s have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by the Education and Skills Funding

Agency.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including
the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you where:

® the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or
. the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the Academy's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’ Report thereon. Other information
includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report, and the
Governance Statement. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothinhg to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

° the information given in the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

» the Trustees' Report and the Strategic Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Report including the Strategic Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or
. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement, the Trustees (who are aiso the directors of
the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' Report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors’ Report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditors’' Report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Alastair Crawford (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Williams Giles Professional Services Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Statutory Auditor
12 Conqueror Court

Sittingbourne
Kent
ME10 SBH

Date: \< /cxon%‘l—’*

Page 38



RMET
(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to RMET and the Education and
Skifls Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 8 January 2020 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to
2020, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by RMET during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have been applied to the
purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to RMET and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Qur work
has been undertaken so that we might state to RMET and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than RMET and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of RMET's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of RMET's funding agreement with the Secretary
of State for Education dated 21 June 2011 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September
2019, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.,

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
Academy's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

* Anassessment of the risk of material misstatement and irregularity

e Testing and review of aresa identified through risk assessment including enquiry, inspection and review,
observation and re-performance

* Review of system of controls, policies and procedures in piace to ensure compliance with the regularity
regime

* Consideration of evdience obtained through the work performed as part of our audit in order to support the
regualrity conclusion
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Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2020 has not been
applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

\__\__-//\-

Reporting Accountant

Williams Giles Professianal Services Ltd
Chartered Accountants

Sittingbourne

Date: ‘. ng PLes 1o
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capital
grants 4 3 - 65 68 1,087
Charitable activities 1 11,135 - 11,136 10,413
Other trading activities 169 - - 169 324
Investments 7 9 - - 9 9
Total income 182 11,1356 65 11,382 11,833
Expenditure on:
Raising funds - 16 - 16 17
Charitable activities 134 11,205 658 11,997 11,970
Total expenditure 134 11,221 658 12,013 11,987
Net movement in
funds before other
recognised
gains/(losses) 48 (88) {593) {631) (154)
Other recognised
gains/(losses):
Actuarial losses on
defined benefit
pension schemes 27 - {710) - {710} (882)
Net movement in
funds 48 {796) {593) {1,341) (1,036}
Reconciliation of
funds:
Total funds brought
forward 531 {3,303) 27,586 24,814 25,850
Net movement in funds 48 {796) {593) {1,341) (1.036)
Total funds carried
forward 579 (4,099) 26,993 23,473 24,814

The Statement of Financial Activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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Registered number: 07654628

Baiance Sheet
As at 31 August 2020

Note

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 16
Current assets
Stocks 17
Debtors 18
Cash at bank and in hand
Creditors: amounts falling due within one

year 19
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 27

Total net assets
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332
2,587

2,929

(821)

2020
£000

26,927

26,927

2,108

29,035

29,035

(5,562)

23,473

279
2,184

2,471

(761)

2019
£000

27,439

27,439

1,710

29,149

29,149

(4,335)

24,814



(A Company Limited by Guarantee)
Registered number: 07654628

Funds of the Academy
Restricted funds:

Fixed asset funds
Restricted income funds

Restricted funds excluding pension asset

Pension reserve

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

Note

20
20

20
20

20
20

Balance Sheet (continued)
As at 31 August 2020

2020

£000
26,993
1,463
28,456

(5.562)

22,894

579

23,473

27,586
1,032

28,618
(4,335)

2019
£000

24,283
531

24,814

The financial statements on pages 41 to 73 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trustees and are

signed on their behalf, by:

MW

R Lawrence
Chair of Trustees
Date: 14 December 2020

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 22
Cash flows from investing activities 23
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24, 25

The notes on pages 45 to 73 form part of these financial statements
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(A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2020

General information

RMET is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity incorporated in England and
Wales. The registered office is Rainham Mark Grammar School, Pump Lane, Gillingham, Kent, MES 7AJ.
The principal activity of the academy trust is to provide primary education for pupils that satisfied the
requirements of the Education Act 2002.

Accounting policies

21

2.2

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities:
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102)
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2019 to 2020 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

These financial statements are prepared in sterling and rounded to the nearest thousand.
RMET meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.
Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the Academy has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy'’s ability to continue
as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.3

24

Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy has entitiement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Legacies

The recognition of income from legacies is dependent on establishing entitliement, the probability of
receipt and the ability to estimate with sufficient accuracy the amount receivable. Evidence of
entitlement to a legacy exists when the Academy has sufficient evidence that a gift has been left to
them (through knowledge of the existence of a valid will and the death of the benefactor) and the
executor is satisfied that the property in question will not be required to satisfy claims in the estate.
Receipt of a legacy must be recognised when it is probable that it will be received and the fair value
of the amount receivable, which will generally be the expected cash amount to be distributed to the
Academy, can be reliably measured.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance Sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entitiement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued,

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as

a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional enfitiernent to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance Sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitiement and are not deferred over the jife of the asset on
which they are expended.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis {where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the Academy has provided the goods or services.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive abligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.
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Accounting policies (continued)

24

-

25

2.6

2.7

Expenditure (continued)

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incured on the Academy's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the Academy apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy: this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the
institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more per item (or less if they form part of a larger purchase or project
where the total cost exceeds £10,000) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost,
net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to
the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet.
Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the
Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under

construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
expected useful life, as follows:
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2, Accounting policies (continued)

27

28

2.9

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehold property ~ 2% to 4% straight line
Long-term leasehold property - 2% straight line
Furniture and equipment - 15% straight line
Computer equipment - 20% straight line
Motor vehicles - 20% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the fower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed
and variable overheads.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

2.10 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

2.11 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance Sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probabie that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy
anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the
goods or services it must provide.

2.12 Financial instruments

The Academy only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assefs - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 18. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 19. Taxation and social security are not included in
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settliement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instrument.
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Accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight
fine basis over the lease term.

2.14 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi~employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign
between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each Balance Sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
2.15 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.
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Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulfing accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2020. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgment:

Useful economic lives of tangible assets

The annual depreciation charge for tangible assets is sensitive to changes in the estimated useful
economic lives and residual values of the assets. The useful economic lives and residual values are
reassessed annually. They are amended when necessary to reflect current estimates, based on
technological advancement, future investments, economic utilisation and the physical condition of the
assets. See note 16 for the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment, and note 2.7 for the
useful economic lives for each class of assets.

Income from donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 3 7 10 980
Capital Grants - 58 58 107

3 65 68 1,087

Total 2019 4 1,083 1,087
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Funding for the Academy's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £0600
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 9,399 9,399 8,995
Pupil Premium - 361 361 371
Other DfE/ESFA grants - 703 703 273
- 10,463 10,463 9,639
Other government grants
Local authority grants - 317 317 355
317 317 355
Other funding
Catering income - 221 221 326
Cther income 1 108 109 93
1 329 330 419
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus exceptional support - 286 26 -

1 11,135 11,136 10,413

Total 2019 2 10,411 10,413

The academy trust has been eligible to claim additional funding in year from government support
schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under

“exceptional government funding”.

The funding received for coronavirus exceptional support covers £26k of deep cleaning and additional
health and safety costs. These costs are included in notes 8 and 9 below as appropriate.
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Income from other trading activities

Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities 37 37 52
Voluntary income 132 132 272
169 169 324
Total 2019 324 324
Investment income
Unrestricted Total Total
funds funds funds
2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000
Bank interest 9 9 9
Total 2019 9 9
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Expenditure

Staff Costs Premises Other Total Total
2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expenditure on raising
voluntary income:
Direct costs 16 - - 16 17
Educational Operations:
Direct costs 7,815 - 1,201 9,016 8,992
Allocated support costs 1,444 1,087 450 2,981 2,978
9,275 1,087 1,651 12,013 11,987
Total 2019 8,827 1,459 1,701 11,987
Analysis of expenditure by activities
Activities
undertaken Support Total Tofal
directly costs funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Educational Operations 9,016 2,981 11,997 11,970
Total 2019 8992 2,978 11,970
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Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Staff costs
Depreciation
Technology costs
Educational supplies
Examination fees
Staff development
Other direct costs

Total 2019
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Educational Total Tolal

Operations funds funds

2020 2020 2019

£000 £000 £000

7,728 7,728 7,441

524 524 468

94 94 121

422 422 436

114 114 126

48 48 83

86 86 317

9,016 9,016 8,992
8992 8,992
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Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of support costs

Pension finance costs
Staff costs
Depreciation

Premises maintenance
Recruitment and support costs
Cleaning

Rent and rates

Energy costs
Insurance

Security and transport
Catering costs

Bank charges

Other support costs
Governance costs

Total 2019

Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentals

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Net interest on defined benefit pension liability
Fees paid to auditors for:

- audit
- other services
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Educational Total Total
Operations funds funds
2020 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000
77 77 75
1,444 1,444 1,323
131 131 117
204 204 283
9 9 -
234 234 184
103 103 127
150 150 201
46 46 54
21 21 27
230 230 297
9 9
297 297 255
28 26 35
2,981 2,981 2,978
2,978 2978
2020 2019
£000 £000
3 4
655 585
77 75
14 10
8 8
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Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to the Academy's auditor and its associates in respect of:

The auditing of accounts of associates of the Academy
All non-audit services not included above

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments
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2020 2019
£000 £000
14 10

8 8
2020 2019
£000 £000
6,693 6,637
621 606
1,874 1,520
9,188 8,763
87 63

1

9,275 8,827
2020 2019
£000 £000
1
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Staff {continued)
b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

No. No.

Teachers 110 114
Administration and support 147 155
Management 14 14

27 283

¢. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2020 2019

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 3

In the band £70,001 - £80,000 4 2

In the band £80,001 - £100,000 1 2
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 1 -

d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits {(including ernployer pension
contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for
their services to the Academy was £500,285 (2019 £463,798).
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Central services

The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

human resources:

financial services;

legal services;

educational support services:
others as arising.

The Academy charges for these services on the following basis:

The Academy charges for these services based upon a flat rate of 5% of tota! GAG, excluding high needs
funding and student financial support funding.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2020 2019
£000 £000
Rainham Mark Grammar School 326 306
Riverside Primary School 50 44
Twydall Primary School 78 86

Total 454 436

Trustees’ remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the Academy. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services
they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment.
The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

S Decker (Chief Executive Officer) Remuneration 90 - 95 90-95
Pension contributions paid 10-15 0-5

During the year ended 31 August 2020, expenses totalling £106 were reimbursed or paid directly to 2
Trustees (2019 - £3,196 to 7 Trustees). Expenses were incurred in performing the normal duties of
employment.

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

The Academy has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and
officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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Tangible fixed assets

Long-term  Furniture

Freehold leasehold and Computer Motor
property property equipment equipment vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2019 19,323 9,160 298 362 29 29,172
Additions - 16 53 T4 - 143
Disposals - - {9) (12) (5) {26)
At 31 August 2020 19,323 9,176 342 424 24 29,289
Depreciation
At 1 September 2019 848 455 152 249 29 1,733
Charge for the year 316 183 61 95 - 655
On disposals - - (9) {12) {5) (26)
At 31 August 2020 1,164 638 204 332 24 2,362
Net book value
At 31 August 2020 18,159 8,538 138 92 - 26,927
At 31 August 2019 18,475 8,705 146 113 - 27,439

_— e —e—— —— e
—_—— ,——————_——— == ——————

Freehold land is included above at a value of £4,231 k, on which no depreciation is charged. Leasehold
land is included at a value of £1,963k.
Stocks

2020 2019
£000 £000

Catering stock 10 8
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Debtors
2020 2019
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 52 20
Other debtors 35 -
Prepayments and accrued income 203 179
VAT recoverable 42 80
332 279
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2020 2019
£000 £000
Trade creditors 148 141
ESFA creditors 122 126
Other taxation and social security - 46
Other creditors 236 140
Accruals and deferred income 316 308
821 761
2020 2019
£000 £000
Deferred income at 1 September 2019 224 178
Resources deferred during the year 245 224
Amounts released from previous periods (224) {178)
245 224

Deferred income relates mainly to rates relief of £35k (2019: £72k); Universal Free School Meal grant

£50k (2019: £40k) and Medway Growth Funding £150k.
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Statement of funds
Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2019 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General funds 531 182 (134) - - 579
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 731 9,399 {8,932) - - 1,198
Other DfE/ESFA
grants 14 703 {649) - - 68
Pupil premium 1 361 (362) -
Other
government
grants 1 317 {318) - -
Other restricted
funds 285 329 (417) - - 197
Covid-19 grants - 26 (26) - - -
Pension reserve (4,335) - {517) {710) (5,562)
{3,303) 11,135 (11,221} - {710) (4,099)
Restricted fixed
asset funds
Assets held for
depreciation 27,439 - (655) 143 - 26,927
DfE group
capital grants 147 58 (3) {143) - 59
Other capital
donations - 7 - - - 7
27,586 65 (658) - - 26,993
Total Restricted
funds 24,283 11,200 {11,879) - {710) 22,894
Total funds 24,814 11,382 {12,013) - (710) 23,473

—————
—_—

—— e
—_——

—
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Statement of funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as foliows:

The Restricted General Funds are used to fund the general operating costs of the Academy

The Restricted Pension Fund represents the Academy’s share of the LGPS Pension Fund defecit.

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund represents the net book value of fixed assets plus the unspent element
of Capital funds. When assets are purchased the fund is increased and depreciation charges reduce the

fund.

Unrestricted Funds represent balances held at period end that can be applied at the discretion of the
Governors, to support any of the Academy's charitable purposes.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not subject to a limit on the
amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2020.

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2020 were allocated as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
Rainham Mark Grammar School 1,499 1,065
Riverside Primary School 307 213
Twydall Primary School 157 234
Central services 79 51
Total before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 2,042 1,563
Restricted fixed asset fund 26,993 27,586
Pension reserve (5,562) {4,335)
Total 23,473 24,814
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Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Rainham Mark
Grammar
School

Riverside
Primary School

Twydall Primary
School

Central services

Academy

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs

support support Educational excluding Total Tolal

staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2020 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

5,043 376 234 1,039 6,692 6,673

906 151 60 209 1,326 1,238

1,778 180 79 349 2,356 2,511

- 743 48 153 944 980

7,727 1,460 421 1,750 11,358 11,402
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Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers Gainss 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Unrestricted
funds
General funds 508 146 {123) - 531
Restricted
general funds
General Annual
Grant (GAG) 727 8,995 (8,927) (64) 731
Cther DIE/ESFA
grants 54 273 {303) (10) - 14
Pupil premium 74 371 {444} - 7
Other
government
grants 5 355 (359) 1
Other restricted
funds 357 610 {682) - - 285
Pension reserve (2,939} (514} - (882) {4,335)
(1,722) 10,604 (11,229) (74) (882) {3,303)
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Statement of funds (continued)

Restricted fixed
asset funds

Inherited on
conversion

DfE group
capital grants

Capital
expenditure
from GAG and
other funds

Donated from
Local Authority

Total Restricted
funds

Total funds

RMET
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2020

Analysis of net assets between funds

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Balance at Balarnce af
1 September Transfers Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout {Losses) 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
24,024 (421) - 23,603
1,793 107 {113) - 1,787
277 - {54) 74 297
970 976 (47) - - 1,899
27,064 1,083 {635) 74 - 27,586
25,342 11,687 {11,864) - (882) 24,283
25,850 11,833 {11,987) - (882) 24,814
Analysis of net assets between funds - current period
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
- - 26,927 26,927
579 2,284 66 2,929
- {821) - {821)
- (5,562) - {5.562)
579 (4,009) 26,993 23,473

Total
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Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior period

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Tofal
funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - - 27,439 27,439
Current assets 531 1,793 147 2,471
Creditors due within one year - {761) - (761)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (4,335) - {4,335)
Total 531 (3,303) 27,588 24,814
Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities
2020 2019
£000 £000
Net expenditure for the period (as per Statement of Financial Activities) {631) {154)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 655 585
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income {65) {1,083)
Interest receivable (9) (9)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 440 439
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 77 75
Increase in stocks {2) (4)
(Increase)/decreass in debtors {53) 209
Increase in creditors 60 210
Net cash provided by operating activities 472 268
Cash flows from investing activities
2020 2019
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 9 9
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {143) (613)
Capital grants from DfE Group 65 107
Net cash used in investing activities (69) (497)
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Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

£000 £000

Cash in hand 2,587 2,184

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,587 2,184

Analysis of changes in net debt

At1

September At 31

2019 Cash flows August 2020

£000 £000 £000

Cash at bank and in hand 2,184 403 2,587

2,184 403 2,587

Contingent liabilities

During the period of the funding agreement, should any asset for which a capital grant was received be
sold or otherwise disposed of, in the event of the Academy not reinvesting the proceeds, it will be required
to pay the grant related proportion of the proceeds to the ESFA.

Should the funding agreement be terminated for any reason, the Academy shall repay to the ESFA the
current value of the academy's land and buildings and other assets, to the extent that such assets were
funded by sums received from the ESFA.

Pension commitments

The Academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff: and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Kent County Council Pension Fund. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2018 and of the LGPS 31
March 2016.

Contributions amounting to £Nil were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2020 (2019 - £46,000) and
are included within creditors.
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Pension commitments (continued)
Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in
academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principies, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014
published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future
contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs,
design of benefits and many other factors, The latest actuarial valuation of the TP'S was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019,
The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

. employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration

levy)

. total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future henefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets {estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

) the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices
and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023,
The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £1 ,058,000 (2019 - £704,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website
(https:Ilwww.teacherspensions.co.uklnewslemployersl201 9/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
Academy has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme.
The Academy has set out above the information available on the scheme.,

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2020 was £487,000 (2019 -
£484,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £376,000 (2019 - £374,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 111,000 (2019 - £110,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 20
per cent for employers and variable per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
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27.  Pension commitments (continued)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2020 2019

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.25 370
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.25 2.20
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.60 1.85
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2,25 2.20
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50 50

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2020 2019
Years Years
Retiring today
Males 21.8 22.1
Females 23.8 24.0
Retfiring in 20 years
Males 23.2 23.7
Females 25.2 25.8
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Pension commitments (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

2020 2019

£000 £000
Discount rate +0.1% 11,292 9,104
Discount rate -0.1% 11,874 9,553
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase 12,000 9,642
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease 11,173 8,999
CPl rate +0.1% 11,612 9,522
CPI rate -0.1% 11,546 9,135
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Pension commitments (continued)
Share of scheme assets

The Academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

Equities

Gilts

Other bonds

Property

Cash and other liguid assets
Other

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £389,000 (2019 - £204,000).

The amounts recognised in the Staterent of Financial Activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At 1 September
Current service cost
Interest cost

Empioyee contributions
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid

Past service costs
Experience loss

At 31 August
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2020 2019
£000 £000
3,898 3,402
40 36
77 450
661 582
183 133
458 388
6,017 4,991
2020 2019
£000 £000
816 702
- 113
{97) (122)
174 185
893 888
2020 2019
£000 £000
9,326 7.346
813 700
174 195
11 110
379 966
(1) {104)
113
777 =
11,579 8326



27.

28.

29,

RMET
{A Company Limited by Guarantee)

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2020
Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2020 2019

£000 £000
At 1 September 4,991 4,407
Interest income 94 120
Employer contributions 376 374
Employee contributions 111 110
Benefits paid (1) (104)
Actuarial gain 446 84
At 31 August 6,017 4,891

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2020 the Academy had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases as foliows:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Not later than 1 year 3 2

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 4 5

7 7

The following lease payments have been recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial
Activities:

2020 2019

£000 £000

Operating lease rentals 3 2

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.

Related party transactions

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 14.
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Agency arrangements

The Academy Trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the Trust received £18,799 (2019: £18,739) and disbursed
£16,800 (2019: £10,431) from the fund. At the balance sheet date, the amount of unspent bursary funding
held by the academy trust totalled £45,052 (2019: £43,053) and is included within creditors.

The Academy Trust distributes Science Learning Partnership funds as an agent to students. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2020 the Trust received £145,815 (2019: £132,656) and disbursed
£150,796 (2019: £106,296) from the fund. At the balance sheet date, the amount of unspent bursary
funding held by the academy trust totalled £89,909 (2019: £94,889) and is included within creditors.
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